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N. M. Joshi Marg, Mahalaxmi
Mumbai - 400 011
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019,
and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institutc of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Other information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
&;:y form of assurance conclusion thereon.

B S R & Co (a partnership firm with Registered Offica:
Ragistration No. BA§1223) converted into Sth Roor, Lodha Excelus

B S R & Co. LLP {a Limited Liability, Partnership Apollo Milis Compound

with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) N. M. Joshi Marg, Mahatlaxmi
with offoct frem October 14, 2013 Mumbei - 400 011, India



-

L.

L

[

BSR &Co.LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Other information (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
‘,c‘c/onomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Auditors’ Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are

~ required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
arc based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencics
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complicd with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
‘_\Vvhere applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Jon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

(A)

(B)

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

€. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 36 to the
financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

The disclosures regarding details of specificd bank notes held and
transacted during 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 has not been

rch 2019.

made since the requircment does not pertain to financial year cnded 31
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continucd)

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not
in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be
commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 10]248W/W-100022
%0“! !

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Mumbai Partner
29 May 2019 Membership No:042070
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Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2019

(Referred to in our report of even date)

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets
by which all fixed assets are verified by thc management during the year. In our
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(©) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have
immovable propertics.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. According to the information and
explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
were not material.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other partics covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of thc
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, paragraphs (iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not given any loan, made any investment, given any guarantee, or provided any
security under Section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted deposits as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India under
the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 (1) of the Act for any of the
activities carried out by the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
income-tax, profession tax, employees’ state insurance, goods and services tax and
other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited during the
year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the

mpany did not have any dues on account of duty of customs and cess.
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Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2019
(Continued)

(viii)

(ix)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax, employees’ state insurance,
profession tax, goods and services tax and other material statutory dues were in
arrcars as at 31 March 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, value added tax and service tax which have not been deposited with
the appropriate authorities on account of dispute. According to information and
explanations given to us, following dues of sales tax have not been deposited by
the Company on account of disputes:

Nature of Statute

Central Sales tax
Act, 1956

West Bengal

Central Sales Tax,
1956

West Bengal

Central Sales Tax,
1956

West Bengal

Central Sales Tax,
1956

Jharkhand

Nature of dues

Central sales tax
and
Interest/Penalty

Central Sales Tax
and
Interest/Penalty

Central Sales Tax
and
Intercst/Penalty

Central Sales Tax
and
Interest/Penalty

Amount (in
Rs)

621,019

6,41,698

9,57.696

8,152,002

Amount paid
under protest
(in Rs)

3.937

900,000

Period
to which
the
amount
relates

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

20110 13

Forum where
dispute is pending

Joint
Commissioner of
Commercial Taxcs

Deputy
Commissioner of
Commercial Taxes

Deputy
Commissioner of
Commercial Taxes

Dcputy
Commissioner of
Commercial 1ax

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
does not have any loans or borrowings from a financial institution, bank, Government or
dues to debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the

Q(}rder is not applicable.
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Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2019
(Continued)

(x) During the course of the examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the management.

(xi)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placcment of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 101248 W/W-100022
M.

-

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Mumbai Pariner
29 May 2019 Membership No:042070
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Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report —31 March 2019

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
scction 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the lon Exchange
Projects and Engineering Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2019, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in thc Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intenal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to
as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such
Wtrols operated effectively in all material respects.
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Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report - 31 March 2019
(Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating cffectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or erTor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in rcasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with gencrally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
a.ie/ts that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report - 31 March 2019
(Continued)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 10 248W/W-13Q022
R.H. -

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Mumbai Partner
29 May 2019 Membership No:042070
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" lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Balance sheet as at 31st March 2019

Notes Asat Asat
31stMarch 2019 |  31st March 2018
INR in‘lakhs INR in lakhs
ASSETS o . B .
o ey U —— — —

{3} Property, plant and equipment 2 - 46.97 66.21
(b) Financial assets B

(i) _Investments L 7 9.85. 9.84

{il) Trade receivables 3 . 1,062.06 1,020.57

(iii) Loans 4 1.20 1.20
{c) Deferred tax assets (Net) 40 - -
{d) Other assets - S 28.29 . 28.29
{d) Tax assets 6 437 - 4.37
Totalnon-currentassets . 1,152.74 1,130.48
Surrent assets P ‘
@ Inventories ]l s 1151 21.01
{b) Financial assets o ) -

{) Trade recelvables 3 . .72,599,94 4,141.90

{li) Cash and cash equivalents 9 e 36,73 42.42

{ili) Bank balances other than {li) above 10 P 165.35 182.18

{iv) Loans 4 i - 31,72 20.37

{v) Others 11 R 1.59 1.42
{c) Otherassets I 5 = 175.53 188.93
{d) Tax assets [ 115.44 71.74
Total current assets e 3,137.81 4,669.97
Votalagsets 4,290.55 5,800.45
EQuUITYANDUABIIIES . _
(a) Equity share capital 12 1,521.52 1,521.52
(b) Other equity 13 (2,793.67 (2,854.31)
Total equity A B . L {1,272.15 {1,332.79)

3 A R

Non-current liabilities - “:
{a) Financial liabilities o N

{l) Borrowings 14 1,146.64 1,146.64
{b) Provisions 15 S o - 91,96 71.25
Total non-current liabilities S ~1,238.60 1,217.89
Current labliitles G
{2)_Financlal llabilities : .

{i)_Barrawings 14 1,406.88 2,557.17

(i) Trade payables 16 .
____ - Dbueto micro and small enterprises o 18.46 ) 23.52

- Due to others _ 234982 = 272495

(i) Other financial liabilities 17 L 199.80 175.60
{b) Other Habilities 18 v 318.34 405,51
{c) Provistons 15 N 31.10 28.60
Total current llabilities ST 4,328.40 5,915.35
Total liabilities S 5,562,270 7,133.24
Total equity and liabilitles ] 4,280.55 5,800.45
Significant accounting policies 1

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date ,, ?,CT 5 /4
(‘

ForBSR & Co. LLP J g \ For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants .2 {Navi Mumba‘ 0 J lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 Z, 420701 g ) CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024

B \ s p Pt

>~ ‘k ¢

Bhavesh Dhupella Heman tog Nikisha Solanki Rajesh Sfarma M. P. Patnl
Partner Chlef fihanclal officer Company Secretary Director Whole Time Director
Membership No: 042070 DIN : 00515486 DIN : 00515553
Mumbal Mumbai Mumbal Mumbai Mumbai
29 May 2019 29 May 2019 29 May 2019 29 May 2019 29 May 2019
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ton Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2019

Notes Yearended Year ended
31st March 2019 315t March 2018
INR In fakhs . INR in lakhs

{a) Income B o

Revenue from operations 19 3,281.87 3,345.48
Other income 20 66.76 167.11
Totallmeome( ey ....3,348.63 3,512.59
{b) Expenses MR

Cost of materials and components consumed ~ 21 25819 1,043.09
Changes in inventories 22 - 114.11
Employee benefitsexpense . 23 1,595.58 1,281.13
Finance costs 24 473.70 582.44
Depreciation and amortization 25 22.21 20.46
Other expenses 26 965.11. 525.13
Total expenses (i) 3,314.79: 3,566.36
Profit / {loss) before tax () (a-b ) 33.84 {53.77)
{c) Tax expense _ 40 - .
Total tax expenses - -
Profit / (loss) after tax 33.84 {53.77)
{d) Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassifled toprofitorloss
{1) Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans 27 1.78) {4.61)
Total Other Comprehensive Income (iV) ) 1.78) {4.61)
Total Comprehensive Income (il +V) 32.06 {58.38}
Earnings per equity share: [Nominal value of shares Rs. 10

(previous year : Rs. 10)] (basic and diluted)

Computed on the basis of profit/(loss) for the year 28 0.22 (0.35)

TR
A TR
Significant accounting policies P *(:\'\
See accompanying notes to the financlal statements Iy ib '10\
) MEL
T T TNav! o
As per our report of even date 1\\2 400 701 i) ;I

2 2y
ForBSR&Co.LLP . \\?/\ )
Chartered Accountants ’ N 30 T oY
Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 N

b-“‘ . So\onﬁ;

Bhavesh Dhupelia Hemant Jog Nikisha Sofanki
Partner Chlef finoncial officer  Company Secretary
Membership No: 042070

Mumbat Mumbal Mumbai
29May 2019 29 May 2019 29 May 2019
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For and on behalf of the board of directors of
lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
CIN No, . U74200MH2011PLC216024

Rajesh Sharma M. P, Patnl

Director Whole Time Director
DIN : 00515486 DIN : 00515553
Mumbal Mumbai

29 May 2019 29 May 2019
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2019

A. Equity share capital

2018-19 2017-18

Number of shares INR In Lakhs Number of shares INR in Lakhs
:,”u:‘:t:" ;‘;:;ﬁﬁ:::;’;ﬁ::’ft:: ::::tv shares 1,52,15,200 1,521.52 1,52,15,200 1,521.52
:,”u:’:t:n ;‘::;‘a':bt‘:: :';:L“f":h:ay':a‘:” equity shares 1,52,15,200 1,521.52 1,52,15,200 1,521.52
Other equity

Reserve and Surplus Total other equity
Capltal reserve General reserve Retalned earnings
INR In Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs

Balance as at 1st April 2017 o 47.20 88.48 {2,961.05) (2,825.37)
Loss for the year (c) ) {53.77) (53.77)
Corporate guarantee commission 29.44 2944
Other Comprehensive income {b) (4.61) (4.61)
Total comprehensive income for the year (c+d) 29.44 - {58.38) (28.94)
Balance as at 31st March 2018 _ 76.64 88.48 (3,019.43) {2,854.31)
Profit for the year {c) i o 33.84 33.84
Corporate guarantee cqmﬁnllglofqﬂ B 2858 28.58
Other Comprehensl;e_ Income (b) (1.78) {1.78)
Total comprehensive income for the year (c+d) - 32.06 60.64
Balance as at 31st March 2019 88.48 {2,987.37) (2,793.67)

As per our report of even date

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

R WS\t~

Bhavesh Dhupella
Partner
Membership No: 042070

Hemant Jo,
Chief finangiol officer

Mumbai
29 May 2019

Mumbai
29 May 2019

Sorank!

Nikisha Solanki
Company Secretary

Mumbai
29 May 2019
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For and on behalf of the board of directors of
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"

Rajesh Sharma
Director
DIN : 00515486

Mumbal
29 May 2019

M. P. Patnl
Whole Time Director
DIN : 00515553

Mumbal
29 May 2019
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2019

‘Year ended Year ended
31st March 2019 31st March 2018
INR In Lakhs INR In Lakhs
A. Cash flow from operating activities: )
Net profit / (loss) before tax as per statement of profit and loss 3383 {53.77)
Adjustment for : L
Depreciation and amortization expense 22.21 20.46
Loss on assets sold / discarded 10.69 -
Corporate Guarantee Charges 28.58 29.44
Re-measurement benefit of defined benefit plans o (1.78) (4.61)
Finance cost . - 473.70 582.44
Bad debts written off 398.91 -
Interest received S (62.43) (152.57)
Unrealised exchange loss / (gain) -
Operating proflt before working capital changes - 803.72 421.39
Adjustment for : L
Decrease in trade receivables 1,155.16 8227
Decrease in inventories i 9.50 115.69
Decrease in loans and advances 2,04 172.85
(Decrease) in trade payables (380.49) {1,301.89)
(Decrease)/increase In other labilitles (62.97) 197.10
Increase in provisions 23.20 6.95
Cash generated from operations 1,650.16 434.80
Taxes paid (43.72) (35.47)
Net cash generated from operating activitles {A) 1,606.45 399.33
B. Cash flow from investing activities: L
Purchase of fixed assets (20.95) (5.75)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 7.29 37.06
Investments made in fellow subsidiaries T 0.01
Bank deposit during the year S T {6.34) {5.29)
Bank deposit matured during the year 2317 172.72
Interest recelved 8.67 18.27
Net cash generated from Investing activities (8) 11.85 217.01
C.  Cash flow from financing activities:
{Repayment of loan to Holding company) / Loan from Holding company {1,086.16) 5.26
Repayment of borrowings {64.13) {42.20)
Finance cost {473.70) (582.44)
Net cash {(used) in flnancing activities _ {c) -~ (1,623.99) {619.38)
Nat (Decrease) [n cash and cash equivalents {A)+{B)+{C) . (5.69) (3.09)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year . 4242 45.46
Cash and_ cash equivatents as at the end of the year 36.73 42.42
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 {Contd....)

Notes:

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flow

2 Cashand cash equivalents excludes the following balances with bank:

1

{a) On margin money account Rs.165.35 {previous year : Rs. 159.01 Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
- 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
- INR!In:Lakhs INR. in Lakhs
Other bank balances disclosed under current assets [Note 9) s 3387 39.87
Cash and cash equivalents disclosed under non-current assets,[gg g - - 286 2.55
Total cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet ,//'\q':é‘ § % \ - 3673 4242
'{;";,IQ'V \lp\
As per our report of even date :; ,-3: Navi Mumbal
iz 400701,
For8SR & Co. LLP W< £ For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants \\?/‘-)\ /\0 lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Firm’'s Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 \'V(L'*“ oY, CIN No. : U74200MH2011PLC216024
LY o 0 v e . -‘» -
Bhavesh Dhupelia Hemant Jog Nikisha Saotankl Rajesh Sharma M. P. Patni
Partner Chief Firfanciol Officer  Company Secretary Director Whole Time Director
Membership No: 042070 DIN : 00515486 DIN : 00515553
Mumbai Mumbat Mumbai Mumbai Mumbal
29 May 2019 29 May 2019 29 May 2019 29 May 2019 29 May 2019
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2019

Overview of the Company

lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited is a closely held public company, registered under the Companies Act,
1956.

The Company is into business of execution of large EPC projects related to water treatments and provide design, supply,
erection and commissioning of projects in industries related to power, steel, petrochemical and other sectors.

1. Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 Statement of compliance

1.2

13

14

15

These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) {Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”}.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual
basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been
applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 29
May 2019.

The operating cycle is determined for each project separately based on the expected execution period of the
contract.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the Company’s functional currency. All
amounts have been rounded off to two decimal places to the nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value; and

¢ net defined benefit (asset)/ liability that are measured at fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. Assumptions
and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31
March 2019 are as follows: \,/

Lodha Exceius,

N. M. Soshl Marg,
19 Maheluxmi,
fdumbal - 400 0114
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 {contd...)

1,

Significant Accounting Policies {contd...}

1.5 Use of estimates (contd...}

a)

b)

c)

Evaluation of percentage completion

Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates,
some of which are technical in nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentage of completion, costs to
completion, expected revenues from the project or activity and the foreseeable losses to completion.
Estimates of project income, as well as project costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if any, to
estimates is recognized in the financial statements for the period in which such changes are determined.

Property, plant and equipment

Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of
the cost may be capitalised. Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule Il of the
Act. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule I, they are based on
technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating
conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’
warranties and maintenance support.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key
actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The
discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-
employment benefit obligations.

1.6 Going Concern Basis

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s paid up capital was INR 1,521.52 Lakhs and correspondingly, the
Company’s accumulated losses as at that date aggregated to INR 2,987.38 Lakhs and the Profit during the year
is of INR 32.06 Lakhs. The company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by INR 1,186.29 Lakhs,

However, management believes that the Company will be able to continue operations on a going concern basis
and meet all its liabilities as they fall due for payment in the foreseeable future based on the following:

- business strategies and operating plans which will enable the Company to expand its operations and
achieve higher income and generate positive cash flows;

- continued support, as required from holding company lon Exchange {India) Limited.
Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any

adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded assets, or to amounts and classification
of liabilities that might result if the Company is unable to continue as a going concern.

1.7 Measurement of fair values

B

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values, which
includes overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values by the management.
The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (contd...)

1.7 Measurement of fair values {contd...)

18

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or fiability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).”

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The company recognises transfers
between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
occurred.

Summary of Significant accounting policies

a) Property, Plant and Equipment and depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes taxes, duties, freight and
other incidental expenses directly related to acquisition/construction and installation of the assets. Any trade

discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Depreciation is provided on straight line basis based on life assigned to each asset in accordance with Schedule Il
of the Act or as per life estimated by the Management, whichever is lower, as stated below.

Assets Useful lives
Plant and machinery 10-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 4 - 8 years
Office equipments 3-5years

Site equipments are depreciated over 3 years.
Leasehold assets are depreciated over the period of lease.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no
further benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Gains / losses arising from disposal are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment as

Sth Floor.
Lodha Excelus,

N. M. Joshi Marg,

Mahataxmi,
Mumbai - 400011
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (contd...)
1.8 Summary of Significant accounting policies (contd...)
b) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The amortization
period and the amortization method are reviewed at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the
asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

Computer software is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of 5 years.

An intangible asset is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected
from its use and disposal. Gains / losses arising from disposal are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets as recognized in the
financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as the
deemed cost as at the transition date pursuant to the exemption under Ind AS 101.

c) Impairment

Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. Carrying amounts of assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date for any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. Value in
use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and
from its disposal at end of its useful life. In assessing value in use, the present value is discounted using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.
Net selling price Is the amount obtainable from sale of an asset In an arm's length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

d) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Exchange
differences arising on the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in
the year in which they arise. Foreign currency monetary items are reported at the year-end rates. Exchange
differences arising on reinstatement of foreign currency monetary items are recognized as income or expense in
the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in
a forelgn currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

e) Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Contract cost that has been incurred and relates to the future activity of the contract are recognized as contract
work-in-progress as it is probable that it will be recovered from the customer.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
-—ecompletion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (contd...)
1.8 Summary of Significant accounting policies (contd...}
f) Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The company determines the classification of its financial
assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

A. Financial assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

The financial assets include equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, loans and advances, cash
and bank balances and derivative financial instruments.

(ii) Classification and Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:
a. Atamortised cost,
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding
b. At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI}, and
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
c. At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL

(ili) Impairment of financial assets

All financial assets are reviewed for impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

(iv) De-recognition

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
explres or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (contd...)
1.8 Summary of Significant accounting policies {contd...)
f) Financial instruments (contd...)
B. Financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities classified at
amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,
derivative financial instruments, etc.

(i) Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
¢ Financial liabilities at amortised cost, and
e Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

- Financial liabilities excluding financial instruments at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the
EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

- Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at each reporting period. Any changes therein are
generally recognised in the profit and loss account.

{iii) De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
g) Retirement and other employee benefits

i) Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund managed by Government Authorities and Superannuation
Fund are defined contribution scheme and the contribution is charged to the statement of profit and loss
of the year when the contribution to the respective fund is due. There is no other obligation other than the
contribution payable.

1i) Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on
Projected Unit Credit method made at the end of each financial year. Re-measurements of the net defined
benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excludi ----- Tty

Sth Floor, §
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

l 1. Significant Accounting Policies (contd...)
it 1.8 Summary of Significant accounting polictes {contd...)
i \ g) Retirement and other employee benefits {contd...)
-
iii) Short term employee benefits are charged off at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related
! service is rendered.
—t
iv) Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is
. done as per Projected Unit Credit method made at the end of each financial year. The company presents
: the leave liability as non-current in the balance sheet, to the extent it has an unconditional right to defer its
'

settlement for a period beyond 12 months, and balance amount is presented as current.

v) The Company’s approved provident fund scheme is a defined contribution plan. The contribution paid/
) payable under the schemes is recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss during the year

in which the employee renders the related service. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
Vo towards employee provident fund. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to
the respective fund.

L h) Revenue recognition
- Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework
for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18
| Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts.
-t
The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective adoption method. The effect of
o initially applying this standard is recognised at the date of initial application {i.e. April 1, 2018). The
u‘ standard is applied retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial
application and the comparative information in the statement of profit and loss is not restated - i.e. the
o comparative information continues to be reported under Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11. Refer note 2(d) -
o Significant accounting policies — Revenue recognition in the Annual report of the Company for the year
!

ended March 31, 2018, for the revenue recognition policy as per Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11.
The impact of the adoption of the standard on the financial statements of the Company is insignificant.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognizes at the point in time when control of the assets is transferred to
o the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an
; amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those

b products or services.
e

s Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the Company is
v standing ready to provide services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight
- lined over the period of performance.
-  In respect of other fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised using percentage-of-completion method
b (‘POC method’) of accounting with contract costs incurred determining the degree of completion of the
- performance obligation. The contract costs used in computing the revenues include cost of fulfilling

warranty obligations.

[
o Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume

discounts and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (contd...)

1.8 Summary of Significant accounting policies (contd...)
h) Revenue recognition (contd...)
Revenue from subsidiaries is recognised based on transaction price which is at arm’s length.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets
are classified as unbilled receivables {only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive
cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there are billings in excess of revenues.

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance based payments and / or milestone
based progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

In accordance with Ind AS 37, the Company recognises an onerous contract provision when the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be received.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The
Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction
price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing obligation could
undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is
accounted for.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers into categories that depict the nature of
services and geography.

Use of significant judgments in revenue recognition

e The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and services to

a customer. The Company assesses the products / services promised in a contract and identify distinct
performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement
to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

e Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be

either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume
discounts and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the
contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to
the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The estimated
amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is
reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Company allocates the elements of variable considerations
to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one
or more distinct performance obligations.

e The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance

.. payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of signj

obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the
relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract. Where standalone
selling price is not observable, the Company uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the
transaction price to each distinct performance obligation.

The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as
services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable=righ

:

- “fewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc Sth Floor,
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

) Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...}

1. Significant Accounting Policies {contd...)
1.8 Summary of Significant accounting policies (contd...)
: h) Revenue recognition {contd...)

e Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The Company uses
judgement to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine the degree
of completion of the performance obligation.

» Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognised
using the effective interest method.

i) Taxation

)
(- {i} Provision for current taxation has been made in accordance with the Indian Income tax laws prevailing for
the relevant assessment years.

(i) Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences being the
difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of
reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is measured on the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Un-recognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) or directly in equity.

(-

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax planning strategies.

U

J)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

« =

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obllgatlon
that may, but will probably not, requnre an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligatian of a .

|

$th Floor,
Lodha Excelus,

N. M. Joshi Marg,
Mlnaluml



(-

-

lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

1. Significant Accounting Policies {contd...)

1.9 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1.10 Segment reporting policies

Identification of segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Managing Director who makes
strategic decisions.

Inter-segment Transfers

The Company accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers at cost plus appropriate margin.

Allocation of common costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the turnover of the respective segments.

Unallocated costs

The unallocated segment includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any
business segment.

Segment policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and presenting the financial statements of the company as a whole.

1.11 Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

1.12 Leases:

v /7

C&;Iegal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the statement of Ejoﬂt and loss.

Where the company is the lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Assets given on operating leases by the company are included in fixed assets. Lease
income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs,
including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

1. Significant Accounting Policies {contd...)

1.13 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset till such time that it is required to complete and prepare the assets to get ready for its intended
use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funi/
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/ C’,’ Coage s
JRIDEC N AR

N hrntag

M. a.ex

29



| .

L

{

(

- -

C

C

C .

lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 (Contd....)

2. Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

INR in Lakhs
Plant and Furniture and Office
machinery fixtures Vehicles equipments Total

Gross block ~

As at 1st April 2018 53.75 21.77 B 1.92 30.72 108.16
Addition during the year - 0.51 - 2044 20.95
Disposal during the year 23.68 - - 249 26.17
As at 31st March 2019 30.07 22,28 1.92 48.67 102.94
Depreclation / Amortisation

As at 1st April 2018 11.71 12.09 1.66 16.49 41.95
Depreciation during the year 4.93 4,78 013 12.37 2.21
Deduction during the year 6.49 - - 1.70 8.19
As at 31st March 2019 10.15 16.87 1.79 27.16 55.97
Net carrying value

as at 315t March 2019 19,92 541 0.13 21.51 46.97
Gross block

As at 1st April 2017 86.00 21.46 192 25.28 144.66
Addition during the year - 031 . 5.44 5.75
Disposal during the year 42.25 - - - 42.25
As at 31st March 2018 53.75 21.77 1.92 30.72 108.16
Deapreciation / Amortisation

As at 1st Aprll 2017 9.90 6.67 145 8.66 26.68
Depreciation during the year 7.00 5.42 0.21 7.83 20.46
Oeduction during the year 5.19 - . - 5.19
As at 31st March 2018 11.71 12.09 1,66 16.49 41,95
Net carrying value
as at 31st March 2018 42.04 9.68 0.26 14.23 66.21
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 (Contd....)

3. Trade recelvables

.

C

L
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Non-current Current
As at As at v Asat As at
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INRInlakhs | INRInlakhs | INRintaklis™ | INRinLakhs
Trade receivables
Unsecured ]
Considered good - 1,062.06 1,020.57 2,599.94 4,141.90
Which have significant increase In credit - . - -
Credit impaired B - - - -
o 1,062.06 1,020.57 2,599.94 4,141.90
Less : Allowance for trade receivables - - - .
1,062.06 1,020.57 2,599.94 4,141.90
. Loans
Non-current Curmrent
As at As at Asat As at
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR In Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR In Lakhs
Tender, security and other deposits 1.20 1,20 | 123 2,62
Claims receivables - ) - 6.12 -
Loans and advance to employees - - 24.37 17.75
T 1.20 1.20 3172 20.37
. Other non current assets
Non-current Current
‘ As at As at As at As at
-31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR In Lakhs INR In Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR In Lakhs
Balance with statutory authorities 28,29 28.29 122.35 139.27
Advance to suppliers - - 3193 12,68
Prepaid expenses T - 21.25 36.98
28029 2829 |00+, 17558 188.93
Tax assets
Non-current Current
Asat As at Asat As at
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR In Lakhs - INR In Lakhs INR In Lakhs- INR In Lakhs
Income tax paid 437| 437 115.44 7174
4.37 4.37 115.44 \L 71.74
Logha Excelus,
19 Mills Compound,
N. M. Joshi Marg.
Mahalaxmi,
Mumbal - 400011
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to financiai statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 (Contd....)

7

10.

11.

Non-currant investments
As at 31st March 2019 - As at 31st March 2018
Units INR In Lakhs Units INR in Lakhs

Measured at cost in equity shares o ’
Unquoted, fully paid-up
Astha Technical Services Private Limited** -
Measured at fair value through profit and loss in equity shares of
others
Unquoted, fully patd-up ‘ . I
Total Water Management Services (Indla) Limited of INR 10 each** 11779] - 984 11779 9.84
lon Exchange Environment Management Ltd. of INR 10 each (Formerly - 80 0.01
Known as lon Exchange Waterleau Limited) o '

(A) 9.85 9.84
Total non current investments 9.85 9.84
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 9.85 9.84

** Astha Technical Services Limited, an assoclate of lon Exchange (India) Limited was amalgamated with Total Water Management Services {India)
Limited, a subsidiary of lon Exchange (India} Limited w.e.f. 15t April 2017 as per order dated 24th August 2017 received from The National Company
Law Tribunal, Mumbal Bench. As per the scheme, 11,779 shares were issued by Total Water Management Services {India) Limited on 24th January 2018

in lieu of shares held in Astha Technical Services Limited.

Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
. As at 31st March 2019 . As at 31st March 2018
- *INRiIn.Lakhs INR in Lakhs
Raw materials and components RN 11.51 21.01
-~ 11.51 21.01
Cash and cash equivalents
T Asat Asat Asat
31;t March 2019 | 31st March 2018 1st April 2016
INR:In Lakhs- INR In Lakhs INR in Lakhs
Balances with banks S
On current accounts o 33.87 39.87 28.68
Cash on hand T 2.86 2.55 231
36.73 42.42 30.99
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivatents
Asat As at As at
31st March 201?‘ 31st March 2018 1st Aprll 2016
INRIn Lakhs ] INRinLakhs INR in Lakhs
Other bank balances: Sl
On deposit account - 23.17 2031
On margin money account * 165.35. 159.01 49.32
- - 165.35 182,18 69.63
*Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of INR 165.35 Lakhs (previous year : INR 159.01 Lakhs) are subject to first charge to secure bank
guarantees issued by a bank on bebalf of the Company.
Others
Asat - As at Asat
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 1st April 2016
INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR In Lakhs
Interest accrued on margin money 1.59 142 3.55
142 3.55
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 (Contd....)

12. Equity share capltal
As at 31st March 2019 As at 313t March 2018
No.of shares|  INR in Lakhs| No of shares| INR In Lakhs
Authorised capitat
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each. . 2,00,00,000 2,000.00 | 2,00,00,000 2,000.00
Issued, subscribed and
fully pald-up capital
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each, ~ 1,52,15,200 1,521.52 | 1,52,15,200 1,521.52
1,521.52 1,521.52
{a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at 31st March 2019 As at 313t March 2018
No of shares| INR In Lakhs| No of shares{ INR In Lakhs
At the end of the year 1,52,15,200 1,521.52{ 1,52,15,200 1,521.52

[}
i

-

\:“;_Q)O 704. S
\ /,_, c.)z-
L
A

{b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
company declares and pays dividends In Indian rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approvat of the shareholders in

the ensulng Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recelve remaining assets of the company after distribution of
preferentlal amounts. The distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company *

As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018
No of shares % holding! No of shares % holding
-lon Exchange (India) Limited, the holding Company and its nominees .1,39,68,640 | 91.81%| 1,39,68,640 91.81%
-Rockmen Merchants Limited 8,28,199. 5.44% 8,28,199 5.44%

* As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial

interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

{d) Aggregate number of share issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immedtately preceding the reporting date.

The aggregate number of equity shares issued pursuant to scheme of amalgamation, without payment belng received In cash in Immediately preceding
last five years ended on 31st March 2019 : 5,215,200 share (Previous period of five years ended 31st March 2018 : xzs.zoo shares)

RS
L0

Y
*3 { Navi Mumbal

Yo x S
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ion Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 (Contd....)

13, Other equity

As at As at
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR In Lakhs INR In Lakhs
General reserve ‘
Balance as at Beginning and at the end of the year 88.48 88.48
o - 88.48 88.48
Capital Reserve o
Balance as at Beginning of the year o 76.64 47.20
Addition during the year 28.58 29.44
Balance as at the end of the year 105.22 76.64
Retained eamings .
Balance as at April 1 {3,019.43) (2,961.05)
Profit / {Loss) for the year 33.84 {53.77)
Other Comprehensive Income -{1.78) {4.61)
(2,987.37) {3.019.43)
(2,793.67) (2,854.31)

Notes
Description of nature and purpose of each reserve

General reserve: The balance represents General reserve of amalgamated company transferred on amalgamation.

Capital Reserva: Guarantee Commission payable to holding Company.

14. Borrowings
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
315t March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR in Lakhs INR In Lakhs INR In Lakhs INR in Lakhs
Working capital loan from banks (secured) - [Refer note (a) below} 70.07 134,20
Loan from holding company {unsecured) [Refer note (b) below] & Refer 1,146.64 1,146.64 | 1,336.81 2,422.97
Notes to Account note No. 33) N PR
1,146.64 1,146.63 1,406.88 2,557.17
The above amount includes .
Secured borrowings 70.07 134.20
Unsecured borrowings L -1,146.64 1,146.64 | 1,336.81 2,422.97
-.1,146.64 1,146.64 1,406.88 2,557.17

{a) Working capital loan from bank is secured by hypothecation of book debts and stocks by way of first charge and corporate guarantee of Holding Company -
lon Exchange (India) Limited. The working capital loan is repayable on demand and currently carrles an interest @ 14.30% p.a., computed on monthly basis on
the actual amount utilised.

{b) Loan taken from Holding Company - fon Exchange (India) Limited carries interest @ 12% p.a. is payable half yearty. stsm Lakhs and Rs. 1336.81 is
Payable on demand.
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 (Contd....)
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15, Provisions
Non-current Current
As at As at As at Asat
31stMarch 2019 | 31st March2018 | 31stMarch2019 | 31st March 2018
INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs ~ INR:In Lakhs INR in Lakhs
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note. ;
No 29) -91.96 71.25 | 31.10 28.60
91.96 71.25 31.10 28.60
16. Trade payables
Asat As at
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR In Lakhs - INR in Lakhs
Trade payables (including acceptances)
- Due to micro and small enterprises (Refer :
note 37) 1846 23.52
- Due to others 2,349.52 2,724.95
2,367.98 2,748.47
17. Other financial [fabllities
Asat As at
31st March 2019 { 31st March 2018
INR In Lakhs INR In Lakhs
Employee benefits payable 199.80 175.60
199.80 175.60
18. Other current liabifitles
Asat . As at
31stMarch 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR In Lakhs INR In Lakhs
Advance from customers ) 57.28 117.52
Statutory dues - 261.06 287.99
318.34 40551
%ﬂ-s - Sth Floor,
O Lodha Excelus,
Ry apollo Mills Compound.
: ,3' Navi sumbal H. M. Joshi Marg.
vl 400 701.
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 (Contd....)

19. Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR In Lakhs INR In Lakhs
Revenue from operations .
Sale of preducts 0
Water Treatment Plants & Accessories 190.84: 872.52
Sale of services L : .
Erectlon & Commissioning 154.24 86.61
Deslgn and Engineering L 1,100.00 1,400.00
Others ;peratlns revenue
Project Management fees 1,836.79 986.35
Revenue from operations 3,281.87 3,345.48
20. Otherincome
Year ended Year ended
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR In Lakhs INR In Lakhs
Interest income on finandial instruments measured at amortised cost ‘
- From banks 7.86 10.03
- From others ) 54.57 142,54
Exchange gain (Net) - 0.67
Other non operating Income 4.33 13.87
.66.76 167.11
21. Cost of raw materlial and components consumed
““Yearended |  Yearended
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR I Lakhs - . INR In Lakhs
Inventory at the beginning of the year - 21.01 2259
Add: Purchases*® 248.69 1,041.51
Less: inventory at the end of the year - 1151 2101
[cost of raw material and components consumed * . 258.19 1,043.09
® Includes direct expenses incurred on contracts INR 39.50 Lakhs
{2017-2018 : INR 42.36 Lakhs)
22, Changes in inventories
" Yearended:: Year ended
- 31st March 20 31st March 2018
INR tn Lakhs
Inventories at the end of the year
Contract work-in-progress _ _ - -
Inventories ot the beginning of the year
Contract work-In-progress - 114.11
- 114.11
Decrease / {increase} in Inventories - 114.11

Navi Mumbai
400 701.
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 (Contd....)

23. Employee benefits expense
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Year ended Year ended
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
JNR In Lakhs INR in Lakhs
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,467.54 1,167.74
Contribution to provident and other funds {Refer Nno. No 29) 64.40 59.65
Staff welfare expense 63.64 53.74
1,595.58 1,281.13
24, Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR In Lakhs INR In Lakhs
Interest on working capital loan 10.09 10.15
Interest on loan from holding company (refer note 33) 463.61 572.29
473,70 582.44
25. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Year ended Year ended
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR In Lakhs INR In Lakhs
Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment 22.21 20.46
22.21 20.46
26. Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
_INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs
Stores and spare parts consumed .
Power and fuel 3.76 4.20
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 5.59 4.03
Rent {Net of recoverles) {refer note 34) 77.91 76.23
Rates and taxes 142 0.72
Travelling and conveyance 285.20 228.70
Freight 8.41 35.36
Packing {Net of recoverles) 0.03 -
Advertisementand publicity 0.08 4.82
Legal and professional charges 69.76 7237
Telephone and telex - -6,97 7.1
Bad debts written of ' 39891 -
Auditors' remuneration {Refer below note no. 26.1) 3.34 3.27
Directors' fees (Refer note 33) s 25 8.50
Bank charges 6.50 11.23
Corporate Guarantee Charges 28.58 29.44
Exchange loss (Net) 0.68 .
Loss on fixed assets sold/discarded (Net) 10.69 -
Establishment and other miscellaneous expenses 38.04 39.07
965.11 525.13
26.1 Auditors’ remuneration {excluding taxes)
Year ended Year ended
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR fn Lakhs INR in Lakhs
As auditor: :
- Audit fees 3.00 3.00
Relmbursement of expenses _ 0.34 0.27
3.34 3.27
27. Other comprehensive Income
Year ended. - Year ended
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018
INR tn'Lakhs INR [n Lakhs
Jtems that will not be reclassified to statament of profit or loss -
surgineqts of defined benefit plans 1.78 4.61
o/ 1.78
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 {contd...)

28. Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Profit computation for both basic and diluted earnings per share of

INR 10 each

Net profit as per the statement of profit and loss available for

equity shareholders {INR in Lakhs)

33.84

(53.77)

Weighted average number of equity shares for earnings per share

computation
A) For basic earnings per share

B) For diluted earnings per share
No. of shares for basic EPS as per 1A

Add: Weighted average outstanding employee stock options

deemed to be issued for no consideration
No. of shares for diluted earnings per share

15,215,200

15,215,200

15,215,200

15,215,200

Earnings per share in Rupees (Weighted average)
Basic{INR) and Diluted{INR)

0.22

{0.35)

29. Employee benefits

A.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of
service. The scheme is funded to a separate trust duly recognized by Income tax authorities.

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of
profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity and

provident fund plan.

10. Past Service Cost
11. Losses / (Gains) on Curtailments / Settlements
12. Defined benefit Obligation, End of Period

{INR in Lakhs)
\ 2018-2019 2017-2018
Particulars (Gratuity) (Gratuity)
| Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation are as follows:

1. Defined Benefit Obligation, Beginning of Pericd 11137 107.78
2. Interest cost 8.45 7.56
3. Service cost 9.64 8.67
4, Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions 8.23 -
5. Actual Plan Participants’' Contributions - -
6. Total Actuarial (Gains)/Losses - -
a) Effect of change in Financial Assumptions 231 (2.02)
b) Effect of Change in Demographic Assumptions 0.67 -
c) Experience (Gains)/Losses (0.06) 9.25
7. Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates - -
8. Acquisition/Business Combination /Divestiture - -
9, Benefits paid {12.04) (19.87)
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st Mar

29. Employee benefits (contd...)

ch 2019 {contd...}

il Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
1. Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 126.10 115.51
2. Interest Income 9.57 8.10
3. Contributions by the employer - 19.75
4. Expected contribution by the employees - -
5. Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions 8.23 -
6.(Assets Transferred Out/Divestments) - -
7.(Benefits paid from the Fund) (12.04) (19.87)
8. (Assets Distributed on Settlements) - -
9. Effects of Asset Ceiling - -
10. The effect of Changes In foreign Exchange Rates - -
11. Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 1.13 261
12. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the Period 132.98 126.10
] Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for
Current Period
1. Current Service Cost 9.64 8.67
2. Net Interest Cost (1.12) (0.54)
3. Past Service Cost - -
4, (Expected Contributions by the Employees) - -
5. (Gains)/Losses on Curtailments And Settlements - -
6. Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -
7. Expenses Recognized 8.53 8.13
v Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)
for Current Period
1. Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period 2.92 7.23
2. Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest income (1.13) {2.61)
3. Change in Asset Ceiling - -
4. Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCl 1.78 4,61
\ Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the Fund
1, Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of
Reporting
1st Following Year 31.07 36.87
2nd Following Year 14.40 12.02
3rd Following Year 18.54 11.89
4th Following Year 27.60 13.80
5th Following Year 10.74 20.72
Sum of Years 6 To 10 38.07 27.27
Sum of Years 11 and above 38.23 26.83
Vi Sensitivity Analysis
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 128.56 111.37
Delta Effect of +0.5% Change in Rate of Discounting (2.31) (1.66)
Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in Rate of Discounting 242 1.74
Delta Effect of +0.5% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 2.39 1.72
Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (2.30) (1.67)
Delta Effect of +0.5% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.24) (0.14)
Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.25 0.14
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

29. Employee benefits (contd...)

VIl | Actuarial assumptions:
1. Discount rate 7.09% 7.59%
2. Expected rate of salary increase 8.00% 8.00%
(Refer note (b) below]
3. Mortality IALM (2006-08) IALM (2006-08)
4, Attrition rate 14.00% 16.00%
S. Rate of return on plan assets 7.09% 7.59%
The Company expects to contribute INR NIL {2017-2018: INR NiL) to gratuity in 2018-2019.
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
Sr. % of holding
No, | C3tesories of Assets 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1 HOFC Standard Life Insurance Company Limited 100% 100%

The expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable

to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

Details of Defined Benefit Obligation Planned Assets and Experience Adjustments:

{INR in Lakhs)

Gratuity 2018-19 | 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2015-16 | 2014-15 | 2013-14 | 2012-13
Defined benefit obligation 128.56 111.37| 107.78 10141 90.38 78.82 72.39
Plan assets 132.98 126.10} 115.51| 112.64 98.18 78.82 72.39
Surplus / (deficit) 4.42 14.73 7.72 11.23 7.80 - -
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (0.06) 9.25| (6.03) (0.24) (7.53) 3.49 11.74
Experience adjustments on plan assets 113 261 0.06 1.15 0.35 0.78 -

Notes:
a) Amounts recognized as an expense and included in note 23:
Gratuity in “Contribution to provident and other funds” INR 10.31 Lakhs {2017-2018: INR 15.59).

b) The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

B. Defined contribution plan:
Amount recognized as an expense and included in the note 23 - “Contribution to provident and other funds” of
the statement of profit and loss INR 44.00 Lakhs (2017-18 : INR 36.50 Lakhs).
C. Other employee benefits:
Amounts recognized as an expense and included in note 23:
Leave encashment in “Salaries, wages and bonus” INR 29.29 Lakhs (2017-18: {NR 20.12 Lakhs)
D.

The net provision for leave encashment liability up to 31 March 2019 KJNR 123.05 Lakhs (31 March 2018 : INR

%/85 Lakhs)
- \( ’\\ Sth Floor,
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

J Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...

30. Financial instruments

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management
|
- A.  Accounting classification and fair values
1 The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including
- their levels are presented below. It does not include the fair value information for financial assets and financial
liabilities not measured at fair value if their carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value
‘ t
: As at 31 March 2019 {INR in Lakhs)
i Note Carrying amount Fair value
No. | FVTPL] FVTOCI | Amortized Total Quoted prices Significant Significant Total
O Cost in active observable | unobservable
' ‘ markets inputs inputs
- {Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets
| Non-current investments 7 9.85 - - 9.85 - 9.85 - 9.85
‘ Loans — Non Current 4 - - 1.20 1.20 - 1.20 - 1.20
bl Trade receivables: Non-current *** | 3 - - 1,062.06 1,062.06 - 1,062.06 - 1,062.06
Trade receivables : Current *** 3 - - - - - 2,599.94 - | 2,599.94
| Cash and cash equivalents®** 9 - - 36.73 36.73 - - - -
P Other bank balances®** 10 - - 165.35 165.35 - - - -
— Loans — Current®**® 4 - - 31.72 31.72 - . - -
Other financial assets — Current®*® | 11 - - 1.59 1.59 - - - -
- Total 9.85 - 1,298.65 1,308.50 - 3,673.05 - 3,673.05
!
- Financial llabllities
Borrowings : Non-Current *** 14 - - 1,146.64 1,146.64 - 1,146.64 - 1,146.64
b Borrowings : Current*** 14 - - - - - 1,406.88 - | 140688
| Trade payables*** 16 3 -|_2,367.98 | 2,367.98 - - - R
- Other Current financial liabilitles ~ 17 - - 199.80 199.80 - - - -
Current***
Total - . 3,714.42 | 3,714.42 - 2,553.52 - | 2,55352
|
-
As at 31 March 2018 (INR in Lakhs)
Note Carrying amount Fair value
No. | FVIPL| FVTOCI | Amortized Total Quioted prices Significant Significant Total
- Cost in active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
. Financial assets
[ Non-current investments 7 9.84 9.84 9.84 9.84
Loans — Non Current 4 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20
Trade receivables: Non-current *** | 3 1,020.57 1,020.57 1,020.57 1,020.57
} Trade receivables : Current *** 3 - - 4,141.90 4,141.90
- Cash and cash equivalents®** 9 42.42 42.42 . .
Other bank balances*** 10 182.18 182.18 - -
) Loans —Current*** 4 20.37 20.37 - -
| Other financial assets - Current***_| 11 1.42 1.42 : :
— Total 9.84 1,268.16 1278.00 5,173.51 5,173.51
Financial liabilitles
: } Borrowings : Non-Current *** 14 1,146.64 1,146.64 1,146.64 1,146.64
- Borrowings : Current®** 14 - - 2,557.17 2,557.17
Trade payables®*** 16 2,748.47 2,748.47
. Other Current financial liabilities ~ 17 175.60 175.60 - -
o Current***
- Total 4,070.71 4,070.71 3,703.81 3,703.81
N @{ ~\‘The Company has not disclosed the fair value of financial instruments such as trade receivables, cas)
- . )//-: alent, bank balances - others, loans, others, borrowings, trade payables and other financial lia
s rrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair \f)e Lo:r'::?:::iu
| 7 Navi Mumbal ‘Apoilo Mils compeund,
: <\ 400 701. 411 N. M. Joshi Muo,
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the vear ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

30. Financial Instruments (contd...)

(i)

(i)

Measurement of fair values
Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as
the significant unobservable inputs used.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique
Non-current financial assets measured at Discounted cash flow technique: The valuation model considers
amortised cost present value of expected payments discounted using an
appropriate discounting rate.

Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

= Credit risk;
« Liquidity risk; and
» Market risk

Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework. The board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which is
responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports
regularly to the board of directors on its activities

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and
constructive contro! environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management
policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced
by the Company. The Board of Directors are assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the audit committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and
investment securities.

Trade receivables

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. In
respect of trade receivables, the company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single
counter party or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large
number of customers in various geographical areas. The company assesses the credit quality of the trade

§in Floor,
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

30. Financial instruments {contd...)

(iii)

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of INR 36.73 Lakhs as at 31 March 2019 {as at 31 March 2018: 42.42
Lakhs}). The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties with good credit
ratings.

Other bank balances

The Company held other bank balances equivalents of INR 165.35 Lakhs as at 31 March 2019 (as at 31 March
2018: INR 182.18 Lakhs). The other bank balances are mainly surplus fund invested in bank fixed deposits and
margin money against bank guarantees issued by bank on our behalf.

Investments

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with
counterparties that have a good credit rating. The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by
these counter-parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors or
specific country risks.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets mainly comprises of tender deposits and security deposits which are given to customers or
other governmental agencies in relation to contracts executed and are assessed by the Company for credit risk on
a continuous basis.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the Company’s reputation.

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from holding company and various
banks. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts
are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting
agreements.

N. M. Joshi Marg,
Mahalaxmi,
Mumbai - 400 011
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

- Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 {(contd...)

30. Financial instruments (contd...)

C

As at 31 March 2019
{INR in Lakhs}
. Contractual cash flows
- Carrying Total Up to 1-3 35 More than
amount 1year years years S years
. Non-derivative financial liabilities
-
(i) Borrowing : Non-Current* 1,146.64| 1,146.64 - - - 1,146.64*
| Total(a)| 1,146.64| 1,146.64 - - - 1,146.64
[
Current Financial liabilities
.
v (i) Borrowings : Current 1,406.88| 1,406.88 1,406.88 - - -
[
(i} Trade payables 2,367.98| 2,367.98 2,367.98 - - -
ot
|
- (iii) Other financial liabilities 199.80 199.80 199.80 - - -
- Total (b)] 3,974.66] 3,974.66 3,974.66 - - -
|
- Total (a)+(b)| 5,121.30| 5,121.30 3,974.66 - - 1,146.64
b As at 31 March 2018
- (INR in Lakhs)
Contractual cash flows
b Carrying Total Up to 1-3 3-5 More than
- amount 1 year years years S years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
_“ (i) Borrowing : Non-Current* 1,146.64| 1,146.64 - - -l 1,146.64*
Total(a)| 1,146.64| 1,146.64 - - - 1,146.64
;) Current Financial liabilities - - -
(i) Borrowings : Current 2,575.17| 2,575.17 2,575.17 - - -
o
- (if) Trade payables 2,748.46| 2,748.46|  2,748.46 - - -
; {iii) Other financial liabilities 175.60 175.60 175.60 - - -
t Total (b)| 5,499.23| 5,499.23|  5,499.23 - - -
b Total (a)}+(b)| 6,645.87| 6,645.87 5,499.23 - - 1,146.64
-
*|t's exclusive of interest. Refer Note. 14
[
U Interest rate risk
- Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk
. is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest
-

rates, in cases where the borrowings are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Cash flow interest rate risk

he interest rates.

44

is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will ﬂuctthibecause of fluctuations
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 {contd...)

30. Financial instruments {contd...)

Exposure to interest rate risk

Company’s interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-

bearing financial instruments is as follows.

As at As at
31 March 19 31 March 18
INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs
Fixed rate loan
Financial liabilities - measured at amortized cost
Long term Borrowing 1,146.64 1,146.64
Short term borrowings 1,336.81 2,422.97
Total (a) 2,483.45 3,569.61
Variable rate loan
Financial liabllities - measured at amortized cost
Short term borrowings 70.07 134.20
Total {b) 70.07 134.20
Total (a + b} 2,553.52 3,703.81

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate borrowings at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a

change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased
(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amount shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in

particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
) + ) +
INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs
1% Movement {(0.700) 0.700 {1.341) 1.341

(iv) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is
attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables
and long term debt. The objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in our foreign

currency revenues and costs.

45
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 {(contd...)

31. Disclosure as per IND AS 115

a) The Company undertakes Engineering, Procurement and Construction business. The type of work in the
contracts with the customers involve construction, engineering, designing, supply of materials, development of
system, installation, project management, operations and maintenance etc. The effect of initially applying Ind
AS 115 on the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers is described in Note 1.8H.

b) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers - Refer Note 19.
c) Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from
contracts with customers:

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018*
Receivables which are included in Trade and other receivables
Contract assets
- Amount due from customers on construction contract
- Accrued value of work done net off provision - -
Contract liabilities
- Amount due to customers under construction contracts -

- Advance from clients 57.28 117.52

As on 31 March 2019, revenue recognised in the current year from performance obligations satisfied/ partially
satisfied in the previous year is INR NIL

d) Performance obligation

The Company undertakes Engineering, Procurement and Construction business. The type of work in the
contracts with the customers involve selling of construction, engineering, designing, supply of materials,
development of system, installation, project management, operations and maintenance etc.

The Company evaluates whether each contract consists of a single performance obligation or multiple
performance obligations. Contracts where the Company provides a significant integration service to the
customer by combining all the goods and services are concluded to have a single performance obligations.
Contracts with no significant integration service, and where the customer can benefit from each unit on its
own, are concluded to have multiple performance obligations. In such cases consideration is allocated to each
performance obligation, based on standalone selling prices. Where the Company enters into multiple contracts
with the same customer, the Company evaluates whether the contract is to be combined or not by evaluating
factors such as commercial objective of the contract, consideration negotiated with the customer and whether
the individual contracts have single performance obligations or not.

The Company recognises contract revenue over time as the performance creates or enhances an asset
controlled by the customer. For such arrangements revenue is recognised using cost based input methods.
Revenue is recognised with respect to the stage of completion, which is assessed with reference to the
proportion of contract costs incurred for the work performed at the balance sheet date relative to the
estimated total contract costs.

Any costs incurred that do not contribute to satisfying performance obligations are excluded from the
Company's input methods of revenue recognition as the amounts are not reflective of our transferring control
of the system to the customer. Significant judgment is required to evaluate assumptions related t

%ﬁ%{ net contract revenues, including the impact of any performance incentives, liquidated d
18 Ay,

oG s of variable consideration. V
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

31. Disclosure as per IND AS 115 (contd...)

d)} Performance obligation {contd...)

If estimated incremental costs on any contract, are greater than the net contract revenues, the Company
recognises the entire estimated loss in the period the loss becomes known.
Variations in contract work, claims, incentive payments are included in contract revenue to the extent that
may have been agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognizes at the point in time when control of the assets is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the company is standing
ready to provide services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the
period of performance.

The Company applies practical expedient in paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information
about remaining performance obligations that have original expected duration of one year or less.

e) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
The following table discloses the reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised as at 31 March 2019:
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2019 Apr-18
Contract price of the revenue recognised 3,281.87 3,345.48
Add: Performance bonus - .
Add: Incentives - -
Less: Liquidated damages - -
Revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 3,281.87 3,345.48

\‘4

PR

f) The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' effective 1 April 2018. The
Company has elected the option of the modified retrospective approach and there is no material impact on

the measurement of revenue and retained earnings as of 1 April 2018.
32. Segment Information:
The Company’s only business being engineering of water treatment plants, disclosure of

is not applicable under Ind AS-108 - ‘Operating Segments’. There is no geographical seg
all the operations are undertaken in Indii%/
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segment-wise information
ment to be reported since
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

33

Related party disclosures (As identified by the management):

Where Controf Exists

a) Holding Company

lon Exchange (India) Limited

Others:

b} Associates

Astha Technical Services Limited**

c) Fellow subsidiaries and joint ventures

Global Composites And Structurals Limited

lon Exchange Enviro Farms Limited

lon Exchange Environment Management Ltd.
(Formerly Known as lon Exchange Waterleau Limited)

d) Key management personnel

Mr. Rajesh Sharma — Director
Mr. Mahabir Patni—Chairman

e) Relatives of key management Personnel

Mr. Ankur Patni — Son of Mr. Mahabir Patni
Mr. Dinesh Sharma - Brother of Mr, Rajesh Sharma

**Astha Technical Services Limited merged with T

April 2017. (Refer Note 7)

3tal Water Management Services (India) Limited, w.e.f. 1st

48
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...}

-

D 33. Related party disclosures (As identified by the management f{contd...):
7‘ i
- Transactions during the year with related parties except entity having significant influence with outstanding
balances as at year-end:
: | (INR in Lakhs)
- Nature of transactions Party referred toin Party referred to in Party referred to in Total
(a) (b} &{c) {d) & (e)
I " 2018-2019 | 2017-2018 | 2018-2019 | 2017-2018 | 2018-2019 | 2017-2018 | 2018-2019 | 2017-2018
.
- Sale of goods
O lon Exchange (India) Limited - 37.07 - - - - - 37.07
o TOTAL - 37.07 - - . - . 37.07
Project management services
Ol rendered
u lon Exchange (India) Limited 2,936.79 2,386.35 - - - - 2,936.79 2,386.35
TOTAL 2,936.79 2,386.35 . - - - 2,936.79 2,386.35
\
i [ Purchase of goods and
hand services
’ lon Exchange {India) Limited 6.55 211.81 - - - - 6.55 211.81
} | Global Composites and
o Structurals Limited ) 6.54 17.64 ) ) 6.54 17.64
‘ Ic.m .Exchange Enviro Farms ) ) ) 452 } } 452
! 1 Limited
P
- ASTHA TECHNICAL SERVICES i i i 100 _ _ 100
LTD
) ] TOTAL 6.55 211.81 6.54 23.16 - - 13.08 234.97
- Service charges
N lon Exchange (India) Limited 60.98 64.99 - - - - 60.98 64.99
- TOTAL 60.98 64.99 . - - - 60.98 64.99
. Interest on loan
l.J lon Exchange (India) Limited 463.60 572.29 - - - - 463.60 572.29
. TOTAL 463.60 572.29 - - - - 463.60 572.29
L_; Other expenses
: Rental expenses
L
L lon Exchange (India) Limited 67.34 62.93 . - . . 6734 62.93
TOTAL 67.34 62.93 - - - - 67.34 62.93
[
I .
- Guarantee Commission
lon Exchange (India) Limited 28.58 29.44 - - - - 28.58 29.44
1
U TOTAL 28.58 29.44 - - - - 28.58 25.44
Remuneration
i1
u Mr. Mahabir Prasad Patni - - - - 90.72 85.79 90.72 85.79
- - - - 90.72 85.79 90.72 85.79
U w * & Co. ¢ ¢
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 {(contd...)

33. Related party disclosures (As identifled by the management {contd...):

Nature of transactions Party referred to in Party referred to in Party referred to in Total
{a) {b) & (c) (d) & (e)

2018-2019 | 2017-2018 | 2018-2019 | 2017-2018 | 2018-2019 | 2017-2018 | 2018-2019 | 2017-2018
Director sitting fees
Mr. Rajesh Sharma - - - - 1.25 1.35 1.25 135
Mr. Ankur Patni - - - - 125 1.25 125 1.25
Mr. Dinesh Sharma - - - - 1.00 1.25 1.00 1.25
Mr. T. M. M. Nambiar - - - - 145 1.25 145 1.25
Dr. V N Gupchup - - - - 1,55 145 1.55 1.45
Mr. Abhiram Seth - - - - 1.20 0.95 1.20 0.95
Mr. Ramendra Gupta - - - - 1.55 1.00 155 1.00
TOTAL - - - - 9.25 8.50 9.25 8.50
Loans received
lon Exchange (India) Limited 2,799.39 4,176.94 - . - - 2,799.39 4,176.94
TOTAL 2,799.39 4,176.94 - - - - 2,759.38 4,176.94
Loans repaid
lon Exchange (India) Limited 3,885.55 4,236.62 - - - - 3,885.55 4,236.62
TOTAL 3,885.55 4,236.62 - - - - 3,885.55 4,236.62
Advances given
Global Composites and - - - - - - - -
Structurals Limited
ION EXCHANGE INDIA . 0.13 - - - - - 0.13
LIMITED
TOTAL - 0.13 - - - - - 0.13
Advances settled
Global Composites and - - - - - - - -
Structurals Limited
ION EXCHANGE INDIA - 0.13 - - - - - 0.13
LIMITED
TOTAL - 0.13 - - - - - 0.13
Outstanding Receivable {net
of Payable)
ION EXCHANGE 25.95 25.95 - - - - 25.95 25.95
ENVIRONMENT
MANAGEMENT LTD.
TOTAL 25.95 25.95 - - - - 25.95 25.95
Outstanding payables {net of
receivables)
lon Exchange (India) Limited 1,146.45 1,246.33 - - - 1,146.45 1,246.33
Global Composites and - - 60.14 66.53 - - 60.14 66.53
Structurals Limited
ION EXCHANGE - - 3.34 3.34 - - 3.34 3.34
ENVIRONMENT
MANAGEMENT LTD.
TOTAL 1,146.45 1,246.33 63.48 69.87 - - 1,209.93 1,316.20
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

33. Related party disclosures (As identified by the management (Contd...):

Nature of transactions Party referred toin Party referred to in Party referred to in Total
(a) (b) & {c) {d) & (e)

2018-2019 | 2017-2018 | 2018-2019 | 2017-2018 | 2018-2019 | 2017-2018 | 2018-2019 | 2017-2018
Outstanding loans and
advances payable
lon Exchange (India) Limited 2,483.46 3,569.62 - - -| 2,483.46 | 3,569.62
TOTAL 2,483.46 3,569.62 - - -| 2,483.46 | 3,569.62
Corporate Guarantee Taken
lon Exchange (India) Limited 2,784.00 2,944.00 - - -| 2,784.00 | 2,944.00
TOTAL 2,784.00 2,944.00 - - -] 2,784.00 | 2,944.00
34, lease
A. Operating Lease

3s.

36.

Company as lessee:

The Company has entered into lease agreements for certain items of plants and machineries. The lease agreement
is for 5 years. There are no restrictions placed upon the company by entering into this lease.

Further minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(INR in Lakhs) (INR in Lakhs)
Within one year 67.34 20.98
After one year but not more than five years 175.54 -
More than five years - -
Capital and other commitments
Estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for is
INR 4.36 Lakhs (2017-2018 :INR NIL).
Contingent liabilities
{INR in Lakhs)
31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Bemand raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of sales tax 2012- - -
13 against which company has filed an appeal
Demand Raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of 2013-2014 6.21 36.66
| against which the company has filed an appeal
Demand Raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of 2014-2015 6.42 6.42
| against which the company has filed an appeal
Demand Raised by West Bengal sales tax authorities in respect of 2015-2016
. . . 9.57 9.88
against which the company has filed an appeal
Demand Raised by Jharkhand sales tax authorities in respect of 2011-2012 against 50.70 50.70
which the company has filed an appeal
Demand Raised by Jharkhand sales tax authorities in respect of 2012-2013 against 30.82 30.82
L which the company has filed an appeal .
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 (contd...)

37. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 {on the basis of the

38. The Company has not appointed a Company Secretary and hence the financial statements are not signed by the

39,

information and records available with Management)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

18.47

23.52

Interest due on above

0.28

1.29

18.75

24.81

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of
the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year.

1.57

1.29

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act, 2006.

Company Secretary as required under section 203 of the Companies Act 2013.

Going concern basis

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going
concern. The management believes that it is appropriate to prepare these financial statements on going concern

basis, for following reasons:

(a) The Company has confirmed sales/services orders in hand as at 31March 2019 which will result in the profit
from operations in the subsequent financial years.

(b} The Holding company has confirmed to provide and maintain sufficient financial support and assistance as
may be needed to enable the business activities of the Company to continue to be conducted as going
concern. It has been decided that lon Exchange (India) Limited will take orders for Effluent treatment plant
and sewage treatment plant and thejorders will be executed by the Company on project management
charges (PMC). L

S1h Floor,
Lodha Excelus,
Apoilo Mills comgpound,
N. M. Joshi Matg,
Mahalaxmi,
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lon Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited
Notes to Financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 {contd...)

40. Tax Disclosures:
The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) presented in the balance sheet:
in Lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Deferred tax assets - -
Deferred tax liability - .
Net deferred tax liability - -

Note:

a. The Company has restricted the recognition of deferred tax asset to the extent of deferred tax liability
and not recorded deferred tax asset of INR Nil on carry forward losses in the absence of convincing
evidence of taxable profits in the foreseeable years.

b. The company has not shown tax reconciliations as they have no tax profits due to carried forward losses
on account of specified business and unabsorbed depreciation

¢. Unrecognized deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credit

Particular March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits for which no deferred tax assets have been recognized are
attributable to the followings

- Taxlosses
Unabsorbed depreciation and Business loss under Income-tax Act, 1961 959.85 930.11
- Deductible temporary differences
Employee benefits 8.87 2.69
Difference between books depreciation and depreciation as Income -tax 9.26 5.48
Act, 1961
Expenses allowed under section 35DD of Income-tax Act, 1961 1.81 3.52
Deferred tax Assets 979.79 941.80

41. Other matters

Information with regard to other matters specified in Schedule Il to Companies Act, 2013, is either nil or not
applicable to the Company for the year.

As per our report of even date

\ For and on behalf of the board of directors of
on Exchange Projects and Engineering Limited

@M ™M pk1hc
/

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

BorH- ,

Bhavesh Dhupelia Hemantflog Nikisha Solanki Rajesh Sharma M. P. Patni
Partner Chief financial officer =~ Company Secretary Director Whole Time Director
Membership No: 042070 DIN: 00515486 DIN: 00515553
Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
29 May 2019 29 May 2019 29 May 2019 29 May 2019 29 May 2019
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